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GENERAL FUNDING 

Q: Is there any specific travel that we should anticipate 
for our PI or staff?  Will we still be participating in 
quarterly meetings and such that I should put into the 
budget?  

A: From a programmatic standpoint, we can definitely 
expect that there will be in-person meetings expected 
about every two-three months. The Cost Model provides 
instructions on how to use the workbook.  Categories 
and subcategories of costs are provided, but the 
respondent also has the ability to add categories or 
subcategories the respondent deems necessary to 
effectively estimate the costs for 1) network 
maintenance and 2) scalability.   

The Patient-Centered Outcomes Research 
Institute (PCORI) is an independent 
organization created to help people make 
informed healthcare decisions. 

1828 L St., NW, Suite 900 
Washington, DC 20036 
Phone: (202) 827-7700 
Fax: (202) 355-9558 
Email: info@pcori.org 

Follow us on Twitter: @PCORI 

About this Document 

This document answers all of the questions 
received as of June 30. Questions received 
after June 30 will be addressed via 
sciencequestions@pcori.com. 

Questions are listed exactly as they were 
received. Language that includes personal or 
organization identifiers has been redacted. 
General terms (underlined) have been substituted 
to protect privacy. 
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Q: There is a slight variation between what is stated in the RFI document for the scope of work for 
sustainability and the categories in the Cost Model.  In the RFI document (page 6) states in the last 
paragraph:  "Responses for anticipated Phase II costs should reflect direct alignment of costs to each 
of the AFOREMENTIONED ELEMENTS that would require continued funding as well as a description of 
the scope of sustainment effort required, also aligned to the proposed funding level."  I think 
"aforementioned elements" refers to the bullet items on page 6.  The Cost Model categories, though, 
are (1) maintenance of network organization, (2) maintenance of network data resources, and (3) 
resources to support the conduction of participation in multisite research studies. Could a mapping 
linking each of the "aforementioned elements" in the RFI document (page 6) to the Cost Model 
categories be provided?  
A: The first sentence in the referenced statement above states, “Thus, the focus of Phase II 
infrastructure funding will largely reflect sustainment and continuity activities and costs of the 
development items from Phase I.” PCORI would anticipate that the respondent would provide estimates 
based on its understanding of the sustainment and continuity activities and how those costs would align 
with the aforementioned elements provided in the RFI document. 
 
Q: Indirect costs: Please provide additional guidance to PCORnet PPRN and CDRN leaders on how 
indirect costs should be represented in the “Estimates” and “Scalability” tabs of the Cost Model 
template. We are particularly interested in how to represent indirect costs with subcontracted 
partners who have different indirect cost rates.  
A: Indirect costs should be reflected as separate line items for the costs submitted by the prime 
contractor as well as the subcontractor. PCORI will require NICRA letters to support the indirect rates 
applied to all costs. 
 
Q: There seems to be some conflicting information on the submission length. On one hand the RFI 
says, “Although PCORI is not limiting the overall volume or page count of responses, concise 
submissions are encouraged.”  The RFI also states a “6 page limit on the narrative of the response 
background questions on the respondent’s research network, and general respondent information.” 
Does this mean that there is no page limit on the Cost Estimate Narrative, or does the 6 page limit 
include this section? Is there no word limit on the details of the cost model responses in the excel 
spreadsheet?  
A: The six-page limit applies to the Cost Model narrative document that explains the estimates provided 
and to the detailed narrative document that includes 1) Respondent’s Research Network and 2) 
Respondent Information only. There is no word limit on the details of the Cost Model responses in the 
excel spreadsheet. 
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PROGRAMMATIC 
 
Q: The ability to collect, store, retrieve, process, and/or ship biological specimens for research 
purposes via biorepositories was listed as an objective for CDRNs in the Phase I application.  There 
was a caveat placed in the global milestones that "PCORI recognized that maturity of biorepository 
development will vary by CDRN and that the milestones listed below may not apply or be feasible 
within the 18-month time frame.  Thus, these milestones will be independently negotiated according 
to the CDRN's originally proposed milestones."  The Phase II RFA document makes no mention of 
biorepositories.  The Cost Model makes a slight mention of biorepositories under the category 
"resources to support the conduction of participation in multisite research studies" in the subcategory 
for dissemination of resources to external researchers. Should the costs associated with continued 
development, maintenance, and organization of biorepositories not be included in the Cost Models?  
If the response is "no", is it to be assumed that biorepositories will not be a function supported by the 
PCORnet Phase II infrastructure? 
A: This was an unintentional omission from the RFI. Programmatically, we would appreciate estimates of 
this if you choose to include them—but this is at the respondent’s option—we cannot require it since 
we didn’t include it. However, we should make note of the fact that biorepositories will be an expected 
component of the PCORnet Phase 2 infrastructure. 
 
Q: The RFI on page 7 states "The PCORnet Coordinating Center will continue to provide essential 
functions and services to PCORnet during Phase II."  For Cost Model estimates, it is to be assumed that 
a robust coordinating center will be in existence and that cost models should take this assumption 
into account. What, in more detail, are the anticipated essential functions and services that a robust 
coordinating center should be providing in Phase II? Should the CDRN/PPRN personnel and other 
resource costs for participation in coordinating center functions be included in the estimates of the 
category for "maintenance of network organization"? 
A: The Coordinating Center will continue to provide network-wide support functions, including 
organizing meetings, maintaining the PCORnet intranet and website, documenting policies and expected 
processes, and operating the PCORnet Distributed Research Network’s operations center. 
 
Q: Example of scalability activity:  Page 10 of the RFI provides instructions for the inclusion of 
“incremental resources needed to ‘scale up’ the capabilities of the network.” Scalability is further 
defined as “a transferable process with relatively modest or comparable resources/steps required to 
add one additional ‘unit.’” We recognize that we have the option to tailor the eight sub-activities 
within the cost model template to our individual project, and these sub-activities are provided as 
guidance. However, we request that PCORI provide an example of an acceptable scalability activity 
specific to PPRNs. For example, could such an activity include a) adding a data source to the PMS_DN 
or the Phelan-McDermid Syndrome International Registry, b) establishing a researcher interface for 
queries to the PMS_DN, and/or c) custom report generation? Such activities have the potential to 
scale-up the PMS_DN with respect to reach and utility, but are likely not “additional units”, but rather 
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new activities. Please provide an example scalability activity/unit applicable to PPRNs such as the 
PMS_DN, including the level of detail required to support the scaling estimate. 
A: An activity such as adding a new data source is an example of an additional unit, for example, if the 
PPRN were able to use its existing data collection capabilities to add new biospecimens data, where the 
efforts needed to add biospecimen data are comparable to the current/existing efforts to build the 
research registry. Another scalable opportunity is the incorporation of a “matching” function, where 
patients/families can indicate their respective types of research of interest, and researchers who have 
studies that may be relevant to those families/patients can connect. This could be scaled throughout the 
PPRNs. The other examples listed by the inquirer are also suitable to include in the RFI response.   
 
Q: Timeline for receiving answers to questions: Our team requests that PCORI makes its best effort to 
respond to submitted questions prior to July 15, 2014 to provide PPRNs and CDRNs as much time as 
possible to compile a detailed and informed response in this accelerated window for the RFI. 
Additionally, please advise as to the recommended individuals to whom we can reach out to for 
targeted (PMS_DN-specific) technical assistance in compiling our response to the RFI, including 
whether it is appropriate to engage our PCORI Program Officer (Sarita Wahba) in responding to the 
RFI.  
A: This RFI Q&A is the appropriate forum for questions. If respondents have additional questions after 
the Q&A responses are posted, please submit them through the PCORI Help Desk at 
sciencequestions@pcori.org for triage and tracking purposes. 
 
Q: Content areas in PCORnet CDM 3.0 (and beyond)  

 
• What content areas (tables) will be included in PCORnet CDM v3.0? 
• In particular, what non-Minisentinel content areas will be included in PCORnet CDM 

v3.0? 
• Do you anticipate that new content areas will be added to the PCORnet CDM in Phase 

2? 
A: At this point, the specific data domains (content areas) for Version 3 of the PCORnet Common Data 
Model have not yet been definitively established. PCORnet is exploring the viability of including selected 
patient-reported outcomes in the Common Data Model, but this will be extensively vetted among 
PCORnet participants before decisions are made. The Common Data Model is intended to be dynamic 
and evolving, so it is highly likely that in Phase 2 additional content areas will be incorporated. 
 
 
 
Q: Refresh schedule and QA Process 
 

• What is the expected or required refresh schedule? How many ETLs (for refresh) are 
expected to be distributed per year? Quarterly? 
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• What is the QA schedule (number & frequency)? 
• What is the expected QA process? 
• Is there an expectation that QA results will be addressed? If so, within what time 

frame? 
A: For purposes of the RFI, respondents should assume a quarterly refresh rate for their core data (that 
is, the data domains in Version 1.0 of the Common Data Model). PCORI realizes that data refresh rates 
may vary according to the type of data element and the frequency with which the native data source is 
updated. If the source data are updated less often than quarterly, respondents should characterize how 
often data are refreshed.  
 
Regarding quality assurance, respondents should also plan for this to occur on a quarterly schedule. The 
process will likely entail the PCORnet Coordinating Center sending distributed programs to check for 
data validity/quality problems. However, the network (i.e., CDRN or PPRN) should also perform routine 
checks at least quarterly and in the case of a major change to the underlying data source (e.g., changing 
electronic health record vendor, adding a new health system or data partner to the network, or working 
with a new data source). 
 
If quality assurance checks identify data problems, it is expected that the network would work as quickly 
as possible to resolve those problems; however, the timeframe to resolve the issue may vary based on 
the issue itself. 
 
Q: PopMedNet  

 
• How many analytic requests (submitted via PopMedNet) are expected per year?  

What is the expected turnaround time on these requests? 
• Are automated SAS queries (SPAN like) expected for phase 2? 
• What are the metadata expectations? 

A: Beginning in Phase II, the PCORnet Distributed Research Network (DRN) will distribute executable 
programs using both SAS and SQL. When PCORnet is fully up and running, the anticipated volume of 
queries may eventually reach 200 per year, with an expected response time of one week. The 
PopMedNet documentation, available here, can provide additional detailed information: 
https://popmednet.atlassian.net/wiki/display/DOC/Request+Types .   
 
Regarding metadata, the expectation is that each site within a CDRN or PPRN would maintain an up-to-
date data dictionary to enable full understanding of how the network populated the Common Data 
Model. Additionally, as part of the PopMedNet portal, metadata would be collected that describe the 
data source and the participating institution (e.g., “Site A uses XYZ electronic health record system”;  
“Site B has pharmacy dispensing data beginning in 1990.”). 
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Q: Scalability 
 

• Our network has 10 data partners or sites. In the Scalability estimates, does “per 
additional research partner” refer to “per data partner/site involved”? 

• For Category 3a- Does this activity include/require additional QA activities? 
A: Yes, additional research partner does refer to the involved site/data partner. Regarding 3a, we expect 
that the use of the PCORnet Common Data Model will enable data partners to address many data 
quality assurance activities preemptively, but in some cases there may be the need to assess the quality 
of new data sources, especially if collaborations involve new partnerships with external researchers or 
external agencies. 
 
Q: General 
 

• Are the estimates on the spreadsheet intended to be summaries for all 10 PORTAL 
sites, or should estimates for each site be itemized on the spreadsheet?  

• Do you want to include an estimate (in general maintenance) for the costs of updating 
the PCORnet CDM as underlying source data systems change (e.g., move to new 
laboratory or pharmacy systems, the change to ICD-10)? 

• For all questions that suggest a “timely” response, could you be more specific about 
the way in which you are defining these time frames? (A few hours, days, weeks?) 

• Could you be more specific about the types of activities you are imagining under 
“knowledge integration and management” – beyond QA/metadata? 

A: It is fine to provide a summarized estimate rather than a site-by-site estimate. Should there be wide 
variation across PORTAL sites (or sites in other CDRNs) that are readily explainable, this additional 
explanation of the variation would be helpful to PCORI. 
 
Estimates should include general maintenance costs expected for keeping the CDM up to date. If the 
respondent is able to project costs associated with migration to ICD-10, that would be beneficial, but is 
not required. PCORI is cognizant that data systems may change over the course of Phase II, and that not 
every change can be foreseen. In general, as described on Page 9 of the RFI, “specify the minimal level of 
resources necessary to ensure that the described functional activity will be available on an as-needed 
basis.” 
 
For prep-to-research queries that are supplied to networks through the PCORnet Distributed Research 
Network, the requested response time would be one week. More generally, it would be reasonable to 
expect an acknowledgement that a request was received by the network within a few days, even if a 
formal response to the request requires additional time. As an example, if a network received a request 
to collaborate on a new research study, it could reasonably take a few weeks to vet such a request; 
however, acknowledging to the inquirer that the request is under consideration should occur within a 
few days at most.   
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During the process of collaboration, PCORI expects that the networks will accrue extensive information, 
both formally and informally, about the capabilities, strengths, and limitations of their participants. In 
addition, networks are likely to identify research-related processes that would benefit from 
improvement and/or standardization. As these discoveries are made, ideally, the process improvements 
would be documented so that duplicative, repetitive, or inefficient processes are not promulgated or 
repeated. For example, the primary administrative steps required to execute a Data Use Agreement 
could be codified in order to minimize re-work each time a new study is initiated. Similarly, if a network 
is piloting the step of integrating a clinical trial alert into the Electronic Health Record, documenting the 
process of this integration, including required approvals and sequence of steps, would have downstream 
benefits for subsequent clinical trials.    
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